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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporaled in Malaysia)
Registration No; 200801008472 (809759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statermnents of the Group and of the Company
far the financial year ended 31 March 2023,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of investment holding and provision of management
services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 7 to the financial
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
Group Company
RM™000 RM'000
Profit after taxation for the financial year 76,345 48,979
Adtributable {o:-
Cwners of the Company 76,367 48,979
Non-controlling interests {22) -
76,345 48,979
DIVIDENDS

The amount of dividends declared or paid by the Company since 31 March 2022 were as follows:-

RM'0GO

in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022
- Fourth interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.25 sen per share, declared on

31 May 2022 and paid on 1 July 2022 7,161
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023,
- First interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.25 sen per share, declared on

30 August 2022 and paid on 28 October 2022 7,138
- Second interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.50 sen per share, declared on )

30 November 2022 and paid on 29 December 2022 14,163
~ Third interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0,50 sen per share, declared on

27 February 2023 and paid on 23 March 2023 14,163

42 625
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporaled in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809750 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIVIDENDS (CONT'D))

in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Directors had on 26 May 2023 declared a fourth
interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.75 sen per share, the Entittement Date will be determined and
announced in due courge. This dividend has not been reflected in the financial statements for the current

financial year but it will be accounted for in shareholders' equity as an appropriation of retained profits for
the financial vear ending 31 March 2024,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the financial year ended 31 March
2023.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from resarves or provisions during the financial year other than those
disclosed in the financial statermants,

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year:-

(a) there were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company; and

(b} there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

TREASURY SHARES

During the financial year, the Company purchased 32,809,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open
market at an average price of RM0.48 per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was
approximatety RM15,835,679 including transaction costs, The shares purchased are held as treasury shares
in accordance with Section 127(6) of the Companies Act 2016 and are prosented as a deduction from equity.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 129,450,000 out of its 2,962,000,000

issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares. The treasury shares are held al a carrying amount of
RM#B2,267.093. The details of the treasury shares are disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to {ake up any unissued shares
in the Company.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Employee Share Option Scheme ("ESOS") of the Company is governed by the ES0OS By-Laws and was
approvad by the shareholders on 20 February 2020, The effective date for implementation of the ESQS is
16 July 2021,

As at the end of the financial year, no ES0S option has been offered under the ESOS.

WARRANTS 2018/2023

The Company had on 6 July 2018 issued 675,000,000 free Warrants on the basis of one (1) Warrant for every
two (2) existing ordinary shares. The Warrants are constituted by a Deed Poll dated 18 June 2018,

The salient terms of the Warrants 2018/2023 are as follows:-

(a) Each Warrant entittes the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share in the
Company at any time on or before the maturily date, 5 July 2023, falling five (§) years from the
date of issue of the Warrants, Unexercised Warrants after the exercise period will thereafter lapse
and cease to be valid;

() The exercise price of the Warrants is fixed at RM1.09 per Warrant;

(c) The new ordinary shares to be issued upan the exarcise of the Warrants shall rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company, and

(d) The Warrants ware listed and quoled an the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on
12 July 2018,

On 1 Qctaber 2020, the Company issued 675,000,000 Additional Warrants on the basis of one (1) warrant
for every one (1) existing warrant held in the Company arising from the Adjustment pursuant to Bonus Issue.
The exercise price of the Warrant also adjusted to RM0.545 per Warrant.

As at the end of the financial year, 1,350,000,000 Warrants remained unexercised,

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable
steps to ascertain that action had been taken in refation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
allowance for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been
writter off and that adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables,

At the date of this rapaort, the directors are not aware of any circurnstances that would require the further writing
off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of

the Group and of the Company.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Ng: 200801008472 (808759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors ook reasonabie
steps to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business,
including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written
down to an amount which thay might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the valuas
attributed to the current assets in the financial statements misleading.

VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any cirgumstances which have arisen which render

adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company
misleading or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

{a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liabililies of any other person; or

{b) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year,

No contingent or other Hability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations
when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this raport, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report
or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the
financial statements misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion
of the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval batween the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially
the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Mataysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS

The names of directors of the Company who served during the financial year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:-

Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin® (Appointed on 14.08.2022)

Dato' Wan Mohd Safiain bin Wan Masan

Chew Chi Mong® {Appointed on 14.08.2022)

Chia Kok Khuang

Tan Sri Ahmad Zaki Ansore bin Mohd Yusof@ (Appointed on 29.09.2022)
Azrul bin Yahaya

Tan Sri Borhan bin Dolah® (Appointed on 12.10.2022)

Dato' Ibrahim bin Abdutah(®

Tan Sri Dato' Seri Dr Khalid bin Abu Bakar™® (Appointed on 29.09.2022)
CP(R) Datuk Mohd Khalil bin Kader Mohd(® {Appointed on 14.09.2022)
Datin Normaliza binti Kairon®™ (Appointed on 12.10.2022)

Dato' Roseleen binti Buyong™ (Appointed on 14.00.2022)

Safian bin Mohd Yunus

Dato' Wan Ibrahim bin Wan Ahmad

Yee Kim Shing @ Yew Kim Sing

General Tun {Dr} Mohamed Hashim bin Mohd Ali {Rtd) (Retired on 14,09.2022)
Data’ Sri Sharifuddin bin Ab Ghant (Retired on 14.09.2022)

Noor Suhaila binti Saad (Retired on 14.09.2022)

Wan Zalizan hin Wan Jusoh (Resigned on 29.09.2022)

(1 In accordance with Clause 165 of the Company's Constitution, Dato’ lbrahim bin Abdullah and Encik
Safian bin Mohd Yunus retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

@ In accordance with Clause 156 of the Company's Constitution, Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin,
CP(R) Datuk Mohd Khalil bin Kader Mohd, Dalo' Roseleen binti Buyong, Chew Chi Hong, Tan Sri
Ahmad Zaki Ansore bin Mohd Yusof, Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Dr Khalid bin Abu Bakar, Tan Sri Borhan bin
Dolak and Datin Normaliza binti Kairon retire from the Board at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The names of directors of the Company’s subsidiaries who served during the financial year and up to the date
of this report, not including those directors mentioned above, are as follows:-

Cratuk Ab. Hamid bin Mohamad Hanipah
Chuah Ban Cheng

Ding Yong

Ng Shih Shing

Md Diah bin Ramli

Tae Lay Ling

Cho Dong Wook

Mwang Inchang

Kim Yoonsuh

Adhitya Ulfa

Muhayuddin bin Musa (Appointed on 16.01.2023)
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the
financial year in shares of the Company and of its related corperations during the financial year are as follows:-

Number of Qrdinary Shares

At At

1.4.2022 Bought Sold 31.3.2023
THE COMPANY
Diract Intorasts
Datuk Haji Abu Harifah bin Noordin 189,666,200 35,531,200 - 275198 100
Chaew Chi Hong 97,020 ,000* 24,000,000 {2,700,000) 118,320,000
Safian bin Mohd Yunus 11,500,000 300,000 {4,550,400) 7,249,600
Yee Kim Shing @ Yew Kim Sing - 200,000 - 200,000
indirect Interasts
Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin
Datin Popi Riandani binti Dody @ 35,631,200 {35,5631,200) 100,000
Handrianov Putra bin Abu Manifah @ 10,000 - “ 10,000
Safia Zuleira binti Abu Hanifah @ - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Harrizal Rizhan bin Abu kHanifah © 6,000,000 . (G,000,000) -
Chew Chi Hong
Lim Chii Yng ¥ 33,072,300 50,000 - 33,122,300
Safian bin Mohd Yunus
Hallmark Epitome Sdn. Bhd. 4] 112,500,000 - (30,000,000} 82,500,000
Demi Mekar Sdn. Bhd, @ 171,731,300 - - 171,731,300
Kuantum Juang Sdn, Bhd, # - 170,000,000 - 170,000,000
Yee Kim Shing @ Yew Kim Sing
Kar Lee Liz (4 200,000 - (200,000) -

*Appointed on 14 September 2022,

Notes:-

M Deemed interast through his substantial shareholding in Puncak Kuasa Holdings Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to

Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016 which in turn holds more than 20% of the voting shares of Hallrmark
Epitome Sdn. Bhd..

® Deemed interest through his substantial shareholding in Demi Mekar Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Secfion 8 of
the Companies Act, 2016

(¥ Deemed interest through his substantial shareholding in Kuantum Juang Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8
of the Companias Act, 2016,

M Transmission of ordinary shares from Madam Kor Lee Lu (Deceased) o Mr Yee Kim Shing @ Yew Kim
Sing, as beneficiary of the Estate of Madam Kor Lee Lu.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D)
8 Peemed interest in shares held by spouse pursuant to Section 58(11)(c) of the Comparnias Act 2016,
& Peemed intarest in shares held by children pursuant to Section 58(11)(c) of the Companias Act 2016,

Other than as stated above, none of the other directors who were in office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in the shares of the Company or its refated corporations during the financial year,

According to the register of directors' shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the
financial year in warrants of the Company during the financial year are as follows:-

Number of Warrants

At At

1.4.2022 Bought Sold 31.3.2023
THE COMPANY
Direct inferests
Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin 6,683,300 - 6,683,300
Dato’ Wan Mohd Safiain Bin Wan Hasan 24,000 20,000 “ 44,000
Chew Chi Hong 7,320,000 - (5,320,000} 2,000,000
Yee Kim $hing @ Yew Kim Sing - 100,000 (100,000} -
Indirect interests
Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin
{3atin Popi Riandani binti Dody " 53,519,460 - - 53,519,460
Safia Zuleira binti Abu Hanifah @ 1,885,600 “ - 1,88%,600
Gerbang Subur Sdn. Bhd, @ 88,660,000 - (88,660,000) -
Yee Kim Shing @ Yew Kim Sing
Kor lLoe Ly 100,000 - (100,000)
Notas:-

() Deemed interest in warrants held by spouse pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act 2016
(2} [reemed interest in warrants held by daughter pursuant to Section 59(11)(c} of the Companies Act 2016.

) Peemed interest through his substantial warrant holding in Gerbang Subur Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section
8 of the Companries Act, 2016,

) Deemed interest in watrants held by spouse pursuant to Section 89(11){(c) of the Companies Act 20186.
The warrants of Madam Kor Lee Lu (Deceased) were transmitted to her spouse, Mr Yee Kim Shing @
Yew Kim Sing, as beneficiary of the Estate of Madam Kor Lee Lu.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAID
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than directors' remunaration as disclosed in the "Directors’ Remuneration” of this report) by reason of 2
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is 8
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantiat financial interest,

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements

whose obiject is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The details of the directors' remuneration paid or payable to the directors of the Company during the financial
year are as follows:-

Group Company

RM'000 RM'000

Fees 980 045
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits 2,042 2,041
Defined contribution benefits 202 202
3,224 3,188

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST

During the financial year, the total amount of indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for the directors
and certain officers of the Group were RM10,000,000 and RM23,000 respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

The detaits of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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RDATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

AUDITORS
The auditors, Crowe Malaysia PLT, have expresaed their wilingness to continue in office.
The auditors’ remuneration of the Group and of the Company for the financial year were RM267 000 and

RM52,000 respectively.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 26 May 2023,

Datuk Haji Abu Haniah bin Noordin

S

i)
Dato' Wan Mohd Safialn bin Wan Hasan
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Ragistration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin and Dato' Wan Mohd Safiain bin Wan Hasan, being two of the directors
of Datasonic Group Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages
17 to 125 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 March 2023 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 26 May 2023,

be=n= )

-
Datuk Haji Abu Hanifah bin Noordin Dato’ Wan Mohd Safiain binWan Hasan

-

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TG SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

1, Chuah Huei Jiun, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Datasonic Group
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 17 to 125 are, to
the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing
the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960,

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovementioned
Chuah Huei Jiun

at Kuala Lumpur

in the Federal Territory

on this 26 May 2023

| .W 5004 - Chuah Huei Jiun
Before me SHAFUL THELMI (MIA Number: 32171)
BINHALTM
1 Jdanuzn /

Hing
31 Diissembyfhr ¥
=,

\"-‘.(]J’I:i! /\\
Untt C-0-10 Megan Avenge 1
Moo L2 Jalan Yap Kowan Saeny
sAT R LT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No:; 200801008472 (809759 - X)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Datasonic Group Berhad, which comprise the statements of
financial pasition as at 31 March 2023 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or logs
and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 17 to 125,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and of their financial performance and their cash flows
for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Cornpanies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted aur audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and Internationai
Standards on Auditing. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for qur opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company i accordance with the By-Laws {on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("By-Laws") and the international
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Infarnational Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfiled owr other ethical
respongibilities in accordance with the By-L.aws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thase matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year, These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as 2 whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D)
(Incarporated in Malaysia)
Registralion No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

'Recoverability of Trade Receivables

Refer to Notes 4.1(f), 4.10(a), 12 and 47.1(b) 1o the financial statemants

'Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

As at 31 March 2023, trade receivables that were
past due and not impaired amounted to
approximately RM65.085 million. The details of
trade receivables and its cradit risks are disclosed in
Note 47.1(b) to the financial statements.

The management applied assumptions in assessing
the level of alowance for impairment losses on trade
receivables based on the following:-

« specific known facts or circumstances on
customers' ability to pay,; and/or
« by reference to past default experiences

The Group assassad at each of the reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that trade
receivables are impaired based on the validity of
contraciual  terms,  analysis  of  customer
craditworthiness, past historical payment trends and
expectation of repayment.

The impairment assessment involved significant
judgements and there is inherent uncertainty in the
assumptions applied by the management to
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for
impairment losses and estimation of future cash
collection.

We determined this to be a key audit matter due to
the inherent subjectivity that is involved in making
judgement in relation to credit risk exposures 0
assess the recoverability of trade receivables.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:-

+ reviewed and understand the management's
assessment of recoverability of major trade
receivables;

« reviewed contractual terms to ensure the Group
has contractual right to recognise revenue and
collect payments;

» reviewed recoverability of major trade
receivables including but not limited to the
review of subsequent collections;

« anquired management on project/receivables
status for major custorners,

« reviewed collections and sales frends during
the financial year of major trade receivables,
and/or

s reviewed management's basis of estimation on
the adequacy of the Group's allowance for
impairment loss on trade receivables,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D)
(Incorperated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 4.1()), 4.10(b) and 11 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We determined this to be a key audit matter as the
Group carries significant development expenditure
which are in the process of development and the
inherent subjectivity in impairment testing.

For purposes of the annual impairment assessment
of development expenditure, significant judgements
are involved in the estimation of the present value of
future cash flows generated by development

expenditure.  These  assessmenis  involves
uncertainties and are significantly affected by
assumptions used and judgement made in

pstimating the future cash flows, which include,
amongst others, the achievability of long-term
business plans.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others.-

»  evaluation and determination of the cash-
generating units;

s reviewed managemenls estimate of the
recoverable amounts and {ested the cash flow
forecasts for their acouracy,;

» reviewed the key business  drivers
underpinning the cash flow forecasts prepared
to support the recoverable amount,

« evaluated the key assumptions used by
managament including any customer orders
already contracted by the Group,

+ assessed the reasonabieness of cash flow
forecast and projections by comparison to
bistarical performance, future outlook and the
achievability of the business plans through
discussion with management,

+ evaluated whether the model used to calculate
recoverable amount of the individual cash-
generating  units  complies  with  the
requirements of MFRS 136 - Impairment of
Assets; and

» reviewed sensitivity analysis taking into
account the historical forecasting accuracy of
the Group to stress test the key assumptions
in the impairment meodel performed by
management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X}

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our respensibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Comparny or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of the Directors for thé Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, international Firancial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do s0.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nat
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
sialements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D}

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

Auditors’ Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International

Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audil. We also:-

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's and the Company's internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Comparty's ability {o continue as a
going concern. If we conctude that a materiad uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Qur conclusions are based
or lhe audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company, including the disctosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

. Ohtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the direclors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD (CONT'D)

{Incorporated in Mataysia)

Registration No; 200801008472 (8097886 - X)

Auditors’ Responslibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that & matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries
of which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 7 o the financial statements,

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this repart,

Cine

Crowe Malaysia PLT Choong Kok Keon
201906000005 (LLPQ018817-LCA) & AF 1018 03461/11/2023 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kumia Lumpur

26 May 2023
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X}

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM'000 RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plart and equipment 5 110,132 131,261 5,685 6,664
Right-of-use assets 6 12,038 11,027 10,012 8,853
investments in subsidiaries 7 - - 91,255 91,101
investrnent in an associate g - - - “
Other investment 9 110 110 - “
Goodwill 10 4,162 4,162 - -
Development expenditure 11 3,852 16,359 u -
Trade receivables 12 - 2,148 . -

130,284 164,065 106,852 106,718
Projects-in-progress 13 1,597 3,180 . -
Inventories 14 48,723 B2 228 - -
Trade receivables 12 114,605 48,618 . -
Other recelvables, deposits and
prepayments 15 12,504 9,442 533 548
Amounts owing by subsidiaries 16 - - 69,860 51,043
Tax recoverable - 2,392 - -
Short-term investments 17 133,082 110,111 48,154 75,391
Deposits with licensed banks 18 6,399 6,107 “ -
Cash and bank balances 18 18,148 4,637 562 1,008

335,068 236,713 119,108 128,080
TOTAL ASSETS 465,362 400,778 225961 234,798

Page 17

The annexed notas form an integral part of these financial statements.




DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT'D)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM'Q00 RMO00

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 19 261,284 261,284 261,284 261,284
Treasury shares 20 {62,267) (46,430) (62,267) {46,430)
Merger deficit 21 (11,072) (11,072) . .
Foreign exchange translation
reserve 22 (63) (56) - -
Retained profits 172,262 138,520 21,893 15,630
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 360,144 342,248 220910 230,303
Non-controfling interests 246 269 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 360,390 342 515 220210 230,393
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
t.ong-term borrowings 23 18,734 23,749 1,046 1,935
Deferred tax liabilities 27 5,183 4 334 - .

23,917 28,083 1,046 1,838
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 28 19,457 6,583 - -
Other payables and accruals 29 15,679 14,648 1,636 883
Provision for taxation 5317 - 81 34
Amourts owing lo subsidiaries 16 - . 133 151
Shortterm borrowings 30 40,602 8,049 2,165 1,308

81,065 30,180 4,005 2,460
TOTAL LIABILITIES 104,972 58,263 5,061 4,405
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 465,362 400,778 225,861 234,798
NET ASSETS PER SHARE (SEN) 31 12.71 11.04
Page 18
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
(Restated)

REVENUE 33 344,705 136,428 75,908 17,048
COST OF SALES (155,333) (59,674) - -
GROSS FROFIT 189,372 76,754 75,908 17,048
OTHER INCOME 34 4,025 3,950 3,448 4,355

193,397 80,704 79,356 21,403
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (83,555) (66,508) (29,795) (19,320)

109,842 14,196 49,561 2,083
FINANCE COSTS 36 (1,659) (1,459) (110) {(131)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 37 108,183 12,737 49,451 1,952
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 38 {(31,838) {2,512) {472) (173)
PROEIT AFTER TAXATION 76,345 10,225 48,879 1,77¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Itam that May be Reclassified
Subsequently to Profit or L oss
Foreign currency translation
differences (8) 24 -
TOTAL COMPREHMENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 76,337 10,248 48,9749 1,779

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements, Page 19



PDATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 {808759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT'D)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RMOGO KRM'000 RM'G00 RMO00

PROFIT AETER TAXATION
ATTRIBUTABLE TO;-
Owners of the Company 76,367 10,244 48,979 1,779
Non-controlling interests (22) {19) - -

76,345 10,225 48,979 1,779
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE
TO:-
Owners of the Company 76,360 10,282 45,979 1,779
Non-controlling interests {23) (33) - -

76,337 10,249 48,979 1,779
EARNINGS PER SHARE

{SEN) 39

Basic 2.68 0.36
Diluted 2.68 0.36

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Fage 20
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No, 200801008472 (809759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT'D)

Distributable
Share Treasury Retained Total
Capital Shares Profits Equity

Company Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2022 261,284 {46,430) 15,539 230,393
Profit after taxation/Total

comprehensive income for

the financial year - - 48,879 48,979
Contributions by and

distributions to owners of

the Company:

- purchase of treasury shares 20 - (15,837) - (15,837)
- dividends 32 - - {42,625) {42,625)
At 31 March 2023 261,284 (62,267) 21,883 220,910
At 1 April 2021 135,000 (37,580) 25 244 122,664
Profit after taxation/Total

comprehensive income for

the financial year - “ 1,779 1,779
Contributions by and

distributions to owners of

the Company:

- imsuance of shares pursuant

to Private Flacement 19 126,284 - - 126,284

- purchase of treasury shares 20 - (8,850) - {8,850
- dividends 32 - - {11,484) {11,484)
At 31 March 2022 261,284 (46,430) 16,539 230,383

The annexad notes form an integral part of thase financial statements, Page 23



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM00O RM’ Q00 RM'000 RM OO0

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 108,183 12,737 49,451 1,852
Adlustments for:-
Allowance for impalrment losses on:
- amount owing by a subsidiary - - 6,103 .
- inventories 37 - - -
- trade receivables 3,572 3,656 n -
- other receivables . 186 - -
Amount owing by a subsidiary written off - - - 136
Amortisation of development expenditure 11,507 4,982 - -
Bad debis written off . 04 - .
Depreciation of property, plant and

aquipment 24,899 11,996 1,084 1,063
Deprectation of right-of-use assets 419 514 ar 245
Froperty, plant and equipment written off 2 19 1 14
Fair value (gain)yloss on trade receivable (170) 50 - “
Interast expeonse;
- Interest expense on lease liabilities 14 55 14 4
- Other interest expense 1,645 1,404 96 127
Inventories written off 136 - - -
investment in a subsidiary written off . - - 10
Reversal of excess accrued operational

cosls “ (4,500 - -
Linrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (272) 18 (4) {1
Dividend income - - (56,000) (2,000)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (48) (47) (46) (47}
Interest income (361) {3,000 {(207) (2,504)
Writeback of Impairment losses on
« inventories (214) (121) - -
- trade receivables (53) - - .
Operating profitloss) before working

capital changes 149,298 28,021 863 (1.001)
Decrease/(Increase) in projects-in-progress 1,583 (977) - “
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 3,654 {3,823) - -
{Increase)/Decrease in trade and other

recelvables (70,156) (17,025) 15 (161)
Increasef{Decrease) in trade and

other payables 13,951 (4,547) 753 434
Cecrease/(Increass) in amount owing by n -

subsidiaries 83 (19,3086)
Decrease in amount owing to subsidiaries - - (18) (12,690)
CASH FROMAFOR) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 98,230 1,649 1,696 (32,724)
Income tax paid (23,280) (2,178) {425) (206)
Interest paid (1.659) (1.459) {110) (131)
NET CASH FROM/IFOR)

QOPERATING ACTIVITIES 73,291 (1,988) 1,161 (33,061)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 24



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incarporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT’'D}

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Note RM'000 RM'G00 RM'000 RM'000

CASH FLOWS (FOR)EROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additional Investmeant in existing

subsidiaries - - (194) -
Interest received 361 3,000 207 2,504
Dividend received - - 31,000 1,000
Proceeds from disposal of plant and

equipment 174 130 174 98
Purchase of propetty, plant and

equipment 40(a) {3,868) (7.321) (137} (218)
FPlacement of deposits pledged to

licensed banks (292) {4} -
NET CASH (FORYFROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES {3.825) (4,195) 31,090 3,384
CASH FLOWS (FORYFROM

FINANCING ACTIITIES
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary

shares “ 126,284 - 126,284
Dividends paid (42,628) (11.484) (42,625} {11,484}
Purchase of treasury shares 20 (15,837} (8,850) (13.837) (8,850)
Repayment of lease liabililies 40(b) (172} {812) {172) (238)
Drawdown of trade financing 40(b) 38,116 18,128 - “
Rapayment of trade financing 40(b) {8,234) {18,859) -
Rapayment of term loans 40(h) (4,108} {21,087) - “
Repayment of term finansing 40(h} {1,394} {1,3586) {1,394 (1,3586)
NET CASH (FORYEROM EINANCING

ACTIVITIES {33,254) 78,751 (60,028) 104,358
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 36,412 72,508 (27.777) 74,681
EFFECTS QF FOREIGN

EXCHANGE TRANSLATION 80 (11) 4 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF THE

FINANCIAL YEAR 114,748 42,191 76,489 1,807
CABH ANLD CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 18 151,240 114,748 48,716 76,489

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Page 25




DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Thé Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The
registered office and principal place of business are at Level 6, Bangunan Setia 1, No. 15, Lorong
Cungun, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur,

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resclution of the directors dated 26 May 2023

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of investment holding and provision of
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
7 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities
during the financial year.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical
cost convention and modified to include ather hases of valuation as disclosed in other sections
under significant accounting policies, and in compliance with Malaysian Financial Repaorting
Standards {"MFRSs"), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia,

(a)  During the current financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted the following
new accourding standards and/or interpretations (including the consequential
amendments, if any):-

MFRSs and/or I1C Interpretations (Including the Consequential Amendments)

Amendments to MFRS 3: Referance to the Conceplual Framework

Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceads before
Intendeg Use

Amendments to MFRS 137: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 — 2020

The adoption of the above accounting standards and/or interpretations (including the
consequential amendments, if any) did not have any material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Page 26



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Na: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

3.1

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONT'D)

(b)

The Group and the Company have not applied in advance the following accounting
standards and/or interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any) that
have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not

yet effactive for the current financial year:-

MFRSs andfor IC Interpretations {Including The
Consequential Amendments)

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendmeants to MFRS 10 and MERS 128: Sate or Contribution of
Assets batwean an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to MFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendment to MFRS 17 Initial Application of MFRS 17 and
MFRS 9 - Comparative Information

Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosura of Accounting Policies

Amendment to MERS 101: Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

Amendments to MERS 101; Non-current Liahilities with
Covenants

Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Effective Date
1 January 2023

Deferred

1 January 2024
1 January 2023

1 January 2023
1 January 2023

1 January 2024

1 January 2024
1 January 2023

1 January 2023

The adoption of the above accounting standards and/or interpretations (including the
consequential amandments, if any) is expected to have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company upon their inittal application.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

3.2

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up 1o the end of the financial year.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities, if any) controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Potantial voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights
are substantive. The Group also considers it has de facto power over an investes when, despite
not having the majority of vating rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities of the
investee that significantly affect the investee's return.

Subsidiaries are consaolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to
the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Intragroup losses may indicale impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group,

{a) Merger Accounting for Common Contral Business Combinations

Acquisitions which result in a busingss combination involving common confrol entities,
are outside the scope of MFRE 3. Accordingly, merger accounting has been used by the
Group to accourd for such commaon control business combinations,

A bhusiness combination involving entities under common control 5 a business
combination in which all the combining entities or subsidiaries are ultimately controlled
by the same party and parties both before and after the business combination, and that
control is not transitory,

Subsidiaries acguired which have met the criteria for pooling of interest are accounted
for using metger accounting principles. Under the merger method of accounting, the
results of the subsidiaries are presented as if the merger had been effected throughouwt
the financial year,

The assets and liabilities combined are accounted for based on the carrying amounts
from the perspective of the common control sharaholder at the date of transfer. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill and excess of the acquirer's interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of the common control business combination to the extent of the
continuation of the interests of the controlling parly or parties.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’'D)

32

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Merger Accounting for Common Control Business Combinations (Cont'd)

When the merger method is used, the cost of investment in the Company's books is
recorded at the nominat value of shares issued. The difference between the carrying
valua of the investment and the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries is treated
as a merger deficit or merger reserve as applicable. The resuils of the subsidiaries being
merged are included for the full financial year,

Acquisition Method of Accounting for Non-common Control Business
Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the
acquisition method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group at the acquisition date, The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liahility resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity securities, are recognised in
profit or loss when incurrad,

In & business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the
acquiree are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain
or loss is recognised i profit or loss,

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. The choice of measurament basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

3.2

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONT'D)

{c)

(d)

(e)

Non-controlling Interests

Nan-controlling interests are presanted within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each compaonent of ather comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed ta non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

At the end of each financial year, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity.

Changes in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries Without Change of Control

All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid
or received ig recognised directly in aquily of the Group.

l.oss of Control

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on
dizsposal in profit or loss which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest in the former subsidiary; and

(i}  the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the former subsidiary and any non-controlling interests,

Amaounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained profits). The fair value of any investments retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost 13 regarded as the fair value on initial
recagnition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture,
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are
based on historical expetience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed {o be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that
affect the application of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liahilities, income and
expenses are discussed below:-

(a)

(W)

()

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for
the property, plant and equipment are based on commercial factors which could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to
the market conditions. The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant
and equipment will be insignificant. As a rasult, residual values are not being taken into
consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount. Changes in the expeacted
level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives
and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be
revised,

Income Taxes

There are certain fransactions and computations for which the ultimate tax detarmination
may be different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on
its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be
due in the ordinary course of business, Where the final cutcome of these matlters is
different from the amaunts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the
income tax expense and deferred tax balances in the year in which such determination
is made.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

The Group determines whether its property, ptant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are impaired by evaluating the extent to which the recoverable amount of the asset is less
than its carrying amount. This evaluation is subject to changes such as market performance,
economic and political situation of the country. A variety of methods is used to determine
the recoverable amount, such as valuation reports and discounted cash flows, For
discourted cash flows, significant judgement is reqguired in the estimation of the present
value of fulure cash flows generated by the assets, which involve uncertainties and are
significantly affected by assumptions used and judgements made regarding estimates of
future cash flows and discount rates.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

(h)

Amortisation of Development Expenditure

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related amortisation charges for the
development expenditure are based on commercial factors which could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market
conditions. The Group anticipates that the residual values of its development expenditure
will be insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for
the computation of the amortisation amount. Changes in the expected lavel of usage and
technological development could impact the economic useful lives and the residuat values
of these assets, therefore future amortisation charges could be revised.

Write-down of Inventories and Projects-in-progress

Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsclete and slow-moving
invemtories and projects-in-progress. These reviews require judgement and estimates,
Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories
and projects-in-progress,

impairment of Trade Receivables

The Group uzes the simplified approach o estimate a lifetime expected credit lass allowance
for all trade receivables. The Group develops the expected foss rates based on the payment
profiles of past sales and the corresponding historical credit losses, and adjusts for
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. If the
expectation is different fram the estimation, such differenice will impact the carrying value of
trade receivables.

Imgairment of Other Receivables

The loss allowances for other financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting appropriate inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the past payment
trends, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist.
This requires management to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill is allocated and to apply a suitable discount rate in order
to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most sensitive
to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the
expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value of
goadwill,
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

4.1

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

U]

()

Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group carries certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, which requires
extensive use of accounting estimates and judgement, While significant compaonents of fair
value measurement were determined using verifiable abjective evidence, the amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any
changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and/or equity.

Impairment of Development Expenditure

The Group determines whether the development expenditure are impaired by evaluating
the extent to which the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount,
This evaluation is subject to changes such as market performance, economic and political
situation of the country. A variety of methods is used to determine the recoverable amount,
such as valuation reports and discounted cash flows. For digcounted cash flows, significant
judgement is required in the estimation of the present value of fulure cash flows generated
by the assets, which invoive uncertainties and are significantly affected by assumptions used
and judgements made regarding estimates of future cash flows and discount rates.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The
measurement assumes that the transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market, For non-financial asset, the
fair value measurement takes into account a market participant's ability o generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.2

4.3

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 ta level

3 as follows:-

Level 1, Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahility
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for tha asset or liability.

The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances thal caused the transfer,

FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES

(a)

(b)

Functional and Presentation Currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the
funclional currency.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency and has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies
on initial recognition, using the exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities at the end of the financial period are translated at the exchange rates ruling
as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates
that existed when the vatues were determined. All exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.3

FUNCTIONAL AND FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONT'D)

(c)

Foreign Operations

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations (including any goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition) are translated to the Group's presentation currency
at the exchange rates at the end of the financial year. Income, expenses and other
comprehensive income of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. All exchange differences arising from translation are taken
diractly to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; attributed to the
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the
functional currency of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the end
of the financial year.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign subsidiary, or a partial disposal invalving loss of control over & subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial dispasal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that foreign operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. The portion that related to non-controlling interests is
derecognised but is not reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
logs. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that includes
a foreign operation while retaining significant influence, the proportionate share of the
accumulative exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss,

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of an intragroup loan is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the exchange differences arising
from translating such monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in
the foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income,

Page 35



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Reqgistration No: 200801008472 (809753 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR £ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position
when the Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MERS
132. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a
liability, are reported as an expense ar incomea. Distributions o holders of financial instruments
classified as equity are charged directly to squity.

Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultanecusly.

A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair vaiue (other than trade receivables without
significant financing component which are measured at fransaction price as defined in MFRS
15 at inception). Transaction costs that are directly attributabie to the acquisition or issue of the
financial instrument (other than a financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss) are
added tordeducted from the fair value on initial recognitton, as appropriate. Transaction costs
on the financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss,

Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial pesition are disclosed in the
individual policy statement associated with each item.

{a) Financial Assets

Al recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amottised cost or fair value (through profit or loss, or other comprehensive income),
depending on the ciassification of the financial agsets.

Debt Instruments
(i)  Amortised Cost

The financial asset is held for coltection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When the asset has subsequently become credit-impaired, the
interest income is recognised by applying the effective inlerest rate to the
amertised cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

4.4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

()

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

(ir)

(if)

Amortised Cost {Cont'd)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including alt fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts),
excluding expected cradit losses, through the expected life of the financial asset
or a shorter period (where appropriate).

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

The financial asset is held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial asset, where the asset's cash flows represent solety payments of principal
and interest. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, except for the
recognition of impairment, interest income and foreign exchange difference which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Interest income is calculated using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss
All gther financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair

value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets change, if any,

Equity Instruments

All equity investments are subsequently measured al fair value with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss except where the Group has elected to present the
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve at initial recognition.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

(@)

(b)

Financial Assets (Cont'd)

Equity Instruments (Cont'd)

The designation at fair value through other comprehensive income is not permitted if the
equity investment is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly
reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise.

Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised in profit or foss when
the Group's right to receive payment is established unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the equity investments.

Financial Liabilities

(®)

(ii)

Financial Liabilities at Falr Value through Profit or Loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are
either held for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement or recognition incensistency that would otherwise arise. The
changes in fair value of these financtal liahilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Other Einancial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the
effective interest mathod.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or recelved that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other pramiums or discounts),
through the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period (where
appropriate).

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Page 38



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No; 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

4.4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

()

(d)

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and anly when, the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss, in addition, on derecognition of a debt instrument
classified as fair value thraugh other comprehensive income, the curmnulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss. In contrast, there is no subsequent rectassification of the fair value reserve to profit
or loss following the derecognition of an eguity investment,

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a
financial liabllity, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments classified as equily are measured initialty at cost and are not
remaasured subsequently.

(i) Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax,
from proceeds. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when
approved for appropriation.

(i)  Treasury Shares

When the Company's own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the
amount of the consideration paid, including all costs directly attributable, are
recoghised as a deduction from equity. Qwn shares purchased that are not
subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a
deduction from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares,

Where treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sales
consideration received and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is
racognised in aguity,

Wherea treasury shares are cancelled, their costs are transferred o retained profits,
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.5

4.6

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the
Caompany, and are reviewed for impairment at the end of the financial period § events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable, The cost
of the investments includes transaction costs,

On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference hetween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSQCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group and the Company have a long-term equity interest
and where it exercises significant influence over the financial and aperating policies,

Investrents in associates are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the
Company, and are reviewed for impairment at the end of the financial year if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the
investment includes transaction costs.

The investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated statement of financial
pasition using the equity method, based on the financial statements of the associate made up
to the end of the financial year. The Group's share of the post acquisition profits and other
comprehensive income of the associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, after adjustment if any, 1o align the accounting policies
with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences up to the effective
date on which significant influence ceases or when the investment is classifiad as held for sale.
The Group's interest in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost plus the Group's share of the post acquisition retained profits and reserves. The
cost of investment includes transaction costs,
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.6

4.7

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D))

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of
that interest is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has an obligation.

Unrealised gains or losses on transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the assoclate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
cost cannat be recovered.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate and the retained interest
in the former associate is a financial asset, the Group measuras the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as the initial carrying amount of the financial
assetin accordance with MFRS 9. Furthermore, the Group alzso reclassifies its share of the gain
of loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income of that associate to profit or loss
when the equity method is discontinued.

GOODWILL

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of
goodwill is reviewad for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. The impairment value of
goodwill is recognised immaediately in profit or loss. An impairment (05 recognised for goodwill
i not reversed in a subseguent period,

Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised and
the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition is recorded
as goodwill.

Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a
bargain purchase gain and is recoegnised in profit or loss immediately.

In respect of equity-accounted associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and an impairment loss on such an investment is not
aliocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying ameount of the eguity-
accounted associates,

Page 41



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.8

PROPERTY, PLANT ANL EQUIFMENT

All items of property, plant and equipmernt are initially measured at cost. Cost includes
expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its Intended use, and the costs
dismantling and removing the items and restoring that site on which they are located.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when the cost is ingurred and it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and
restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is obligated to incur when the asset
is acquired, if applicable,

Freahold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is
charged to profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset) on the
straight-tine method to write off the depreciable amaount of the assets over their estimated useful
lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from
active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
dre:-

Furniture and fittings 10%
Motar vehicles 20%
Office equipment 10% - 33.33%
Machineries Over the project output, 6.67% - 25%
Renovation 10%
Bulidings 2%

The depreciation method, useful fives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each financial year to ensure that the amounts, method and periods
of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of the property, plant and equipment.
Any changes are accounted for as a change in estimate.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.8

4.9

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Assets-in-progress represent assets under construction, and which are not ready for
commercial use at the end of the financial year. Assets-in-progress are stated at cost, and is
transferred to the relevant category of assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are
completed and ready for commercial use.

Cost of assefs-in-progress include direct cost, related expenditure and interest cost on
borrowings taken to finance the construction or acquisition of the assets to the date that the
assets are completed and put into use.

An item of property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal ar when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecagnition of the
assel, being the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Research expendiure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred,

Pevelopment expenditure is recognised as expense except that expenditure incurred on
develppment projects are capitalised as non-current assets to the extent that such expenditure
is expected to generate future economic benefits. Development expenditure is capitalised if,
and only if an entity can demonstrate all of the following:-

(a) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributabie to the asset under developmant,

(b} ihe product or process is technically and commercialty feasible;

{c} its future economic benefits are probable;

{d) its intention to complete and the ability to use or sell the developed asset; and

{e) the availahility of adequate technical, financial and other rescurces to complete the asset
under development,

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as expenses are not
recognised as assets in the subsequent period.

The development expenditure is amortised on either & unit of production method over the life
of the project or straight-line method over a period of 5 years, where applicable, when the
products are ready for sale or use, In the event that the expected future economic benefits are
no longer probable of being recovered, the development expenditure is written down to its
recoverable amount,

The amartisation method, useful life and residual value are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the eand of each financial year.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

410

IMPAIRMENT

(a}

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt
instruments that are measured at amortised cost.

The expected credit loss is estimated as the difference belween all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate,

The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in cradit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument, The Group
always recognises lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables and contract
assets using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on these financial
assels are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit oss
experience and are adjusted for forward-looking information (including time value of
money where appropriate).

For all other financial ingtruments, the Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since iritial recognition. However,
if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit [osses,

The Group recognises an impairment gain of loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are measured at fair
value through other comprehansive income, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.10

IMPAIRMENT (CONT'D)

(b)

impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 does not apply, are
reviewed at the end of each financial year for impairment when an annual impairment
assessment is compulsory or there is an indication that the assels might be impaired.
Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their
recoverable amourits. When the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is writter down to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss shall
be recognised. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the assets' fair value
less costs to sell and its value-in-use, which is measured by reference to discounted
future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group determines the
racoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried
at its revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation decrease to the extent of a previously recognised revaluation surplus for the
sama assel. Any impairment losses recognised in respect of a cash-generating units is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-
generating unit en & pro rata basis,

In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recaverable
amount of an assef is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is
recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been
determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised, The reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the assetl is
carried at its revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Page 45



DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (808758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.11

4.12

4.13

PROJECTS-IN-PROGRESS

Projects-in-progress represent costs incurred on projects which are not completed as at the end
of the financial year, Projects-in-progress are stated at cost, which includes directly attributable
labour costs and an appropriate proportion of diractly attributable costs and overheads on such
projects. When it is probable that total project costs will exceed total project revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. The revenue is recognised
progressively in profit or loss upon completion of the projects based on delivery of goods and
customers' acceptance.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reatisable value. Cost is determined on the
first-in-first-out method and camprises the purchase price, production or conversion costs and
incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost
of conversian includes cost directly relatad to the units of production, and a propaortion of fixed
production overheads based on normal capacity of the production facilities.

MNet realisable value represents the estimated selting price less the estimaled costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Where necessary, due allowance is made for obsolete, damaged and slowing-moving items.
The Group write down its obsolete or siow moving inventories based on assessment of the
condition and the future demand for the inventories, These inventaries are written down when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be racovered,

LEASES

The Group assesses whether a contract is or containg a lease, at the inception of the contract.
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for low-value assets and short-term leases
with 12 months or less. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straightdineg method over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic banefits from the
leased assets are consumed,

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use assets and the associated lease liabilities are presented as a separate
line itern in the statements of financial position.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost includes the initial amount of the
corresponding lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement gdate, plus any initial direct costs incurred and the estimated costs of
dismantling and restoration costs, less any incentives received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

4.13

414

4.18

LEASES (CONT'D)

The right-of-use assel is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
depreciation starts from the commencement date of the lease. I the lease transfars ownership
of the underlying asset to the Group or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects thaf the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the refated right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of tha right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are determined an the same basis as those
property, plart and equipment. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:-

Office premise Over 2 years
Leasehold land QOver 54 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present valueg of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
sannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Itis remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments (other than lease
modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease) with the corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying ameunt has been reduced to zero,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, and short-
term, highly tiquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity periods of three
manths or less. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafts.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
rasult of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made, Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of monay is material, the provision is
the present value of the estimated expenditure required to settle the obligation. The unwinding
of the discount is recognisad as interest expense in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONY'D)

416 BORROWING CQOSTS

4.17

Borrowing costs that directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are ready for their intended use or sale. The capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

All ather borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they
incurred.

Imvastment income earned on the temporary investmaent of specific borrowing pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs etigible for capitalisation,

INCOME TAXES

(a)

(b)

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are expected amount of income tax recoverable or
payable to the taxation authorities.

Current taxes are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting peried and are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity).

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liabitity method for all temporary differences other
than those that arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liabiiity is seitled, based on the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

417 INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)

418

(k)

Deferred Tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
wilt be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realised,

Current and deferred tax items are recognised in corredation to the underlying transactions
gither in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferrad tax arising
from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill or negative goadwill,

Current tax assetls and liabilities or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity {or on different tax entities but they intend to
settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis) and the same taxation authority.

(c)

Sales Tax and Service Tax (“SS5T")

S5T are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacled or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period and are sither capitalised or recognised in
profit or loss. The amount of S8T charged arising from revenue and is payable to the
authorities at the end of the reporting period is included in other payables.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and bonuses are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are recognised in profit or loss ar included in the development expenditure, where
appropriate, in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees
of the Group.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss or
incluced in the development expenditure, where appropriate, in the period to which they
redate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liahility in respact
of the defined contribution plans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

419

4.20

4.21

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probabie that an cutflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannol be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to fransactions with any of the Group's other components. An operating segmeni's operating
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the reporting period, adjusted for own shares held,

Diluted earnings per ordinary share is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potantial
ardinary sharas, which derived from the warrants.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
4.22 RELATED PARTIES
A party is related to an entity (referred to as the "reporting entity”} if:-

(a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related 1o a reporting entity if that
person:-

(i) has control or joint control over the reparting entity;

(i)  has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(i} s a mamber of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the reporting entity.

(bY  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

(i}  The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and felow subsidiary is related to the others),

(i}  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or
joint veniure of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i} Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting
antity.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controtied by a person identified in (&) above,

(vit) A person identified in (a)i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity),

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Related parties also include key management personnet defined as directors having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting entity
either directly or indirectly.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D))
4.23 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinet perfarmance
obligation in the contract with customer, Revenue from contracts with customers is measured
at its transaction price, being the amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, net of sales and service
tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to
customer, An asset is transferrod when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset,

The Group transfers controt of a good or service at a point in time unless cne of the following
overtime criteria is met:-

(@)

()

The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group
performs.

The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced.

The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Sale of Goods and Software Solutions (“S5")

Revenue from sale of goods and 55 is recognised when the Group has transferred
control of the goods to the customer, being when the goads have been delivered to the
customar and upon its acceptance. Following delivery, the customer has full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price 1o sell the goods, and bears the risks of
cbsolescence and toss in relation to the goods.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are deliverad as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from providing services is recognised over time in the period in which the
services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporling period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'E)}

4.24 REVENUE FROM OTHER SOURCES AND OTHER QPERATING INCOME

{a)

(b)

(c)

()

Management Fee
Management fee is recognised on an accruat hasis,
Dividend Income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend
paymant is established.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Rental Income

Rental income is accountad for on a straight-line method over the lease term,

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE |5 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The net book valuas of the property, plant and equipment which were charged to licensed banks for
facilities granted to the Group and the Company as at the end of the financial year were as follows:-

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'O0G RM'000 RM000 ARM000
Freehold land 11,735 11,735 - -
Buildings 37.401 38,228 3,460 3,546
49,136 4%,953 3,460 3,546

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE 1S INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (B09758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Office Leasehold
Premise Land Total
Group RNM000 RMO00 RM'000
Cost
At 1 April 2022 . 13,340 13,340
Addition 1,430 - 1,430
At 31 March 2023 1,430 13,340 14,770
Accumulated Depreciation
AL 1 April 2022 . 2,313 2313
Charge for the year 172 247 419
At 31 March 2023 172 2,560 2732
Net Book Value 1,258 10,780 12,038
Leasehold Motor
Machineries Land Vehicles Total

Group RM'QO0 RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00
Cost
At 1 April 2021 2,401 13,340 702 16,443
Reclassification to property, plant and

equipment (2.401) - (702) {3,103)
Al 31 March 2022 - 13,340 - 13,340
Accumulated Depraciation
AL April 2021 861 2,066 307 3234
Charge for the year 220 247 47 514
Reclassification to property, plant and

equipment (1,081) - (354) (1,435)
At 31 March 2022 - 2313 - 2,313
Net Book Value - 11,027 - 11,027
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

6.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Company

Cost

At 1 April 2022
Addition

At 31 March 2023

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2023
Net Book Value

Company

Cost

At 1 April 2021
Reclassification to property, plant and eguipment

At 31 March 2022

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2021
Charge for the yaar
Reclassification to property, plant and equipment

At 31 March 2022

Net Book Value

Office Leasehold
Premise lL.and Total
RM'GO0 RNO00 RM'000
- 10,740 10,740
1,430 - 1,430
1,430 10,740 12,170
- 1,787 1,787
172 199 371
172 1,986 2,158
1,258 8,754 10,012
Leasehold Motor
Land Vehicles Total
RM'000 RM'O00 RM0G0
10,740 702 11,442
- (702) (702)
10,740 - 10,740
1,589 307 1,896
198 47 245
. (354) (354)
1,787 m 1,787
8,953 - 8,053
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{incorpeorated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)
i) Leasehold land

The Group entered into 2 non-cancellable operating lease agreements for the use of the land.
The leases are for a period of 54 years with no renewal or purchase option in the agreemants,
The leases do not allow the Group to assign, transfer or sublease the whele or any part of the
land. The leasehold land of the Group and of the Company amounting to RM8,754,000 and
RM8, 754,000 {2022 - RM11,027,000 and RMB8,952,000) ie charged to licensad hanks for
facilities granted to the Group and the Comparny respectively as at the end of the financial
year.

{ii) Office Premise

The Company entered into an operating lease agreement for the use of the office prermise. The
lease agreement is for a period of 2 years with no renewal or purchase option.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unquoted shares, at cost
- in Malaysia
- outside Malaysia

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

Principal Place of
Business/Country
of Incerporation
Name of Subsidiary

Datazonic Corporation Malaysia
Sdn. Bhe, ("DCSE")

Datasonic Technologies Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ("DTSE")

Datasonic Smart Solutions Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ("DESSE") ™

Datasonic Manufacturing Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ("DMSBE")

Datasonic Innovation Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ("DISB") A

Amalan Fokus Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
{("AFSBR") A

Datasonic Digital Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia
("RneBm A

Datasonic International Malaysia

5dn. Bhd. ("DINT"} A

Percentage of
Issued Share

Capital Held by

Parent
2023 2022
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Company
2023 2022
RM'000 RM’000
90,226 90,072
1,029 1,029
81 258 91,101

Principal Activities

Farsonalisation of smart
cards.

Customisation of software
and hardware solutions,
project management,
consultancy, manufacturing
and research and
development activities,

Research and developmant
and technicat consuitancy
services.

Manutacluring of electrical
integrated circuit cards or
commonly known as smarl
cards and its related
products.

Provision of biometrics
solution,
Darmant,

Dormant.

Dormant.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Neg: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

Percentage of
Principal Place of  Issued Share
Business/Country  Capital Held by

of Incorporation Parent
Name of Subsidiary 2023 2022  Principal Activities
BI{J %
Datasonic New Zealand New 100 100 Software development
Limited ("DNZL") ~ Zoaland services and computer
systems design and related
activities.
PT Datasonic Tekneologi Indonesta 100 100 Personalisation of smart
Indonesia ("PTD") @ # cards,
Datasonic Business Philippines 40 40 Dormant,
Technotogy Philippines
("DBTP"Y @ 5
Medicioud Malaysia Sdn. Malaysia 100 - 100 Darmant,
Bhd. ("MM3B")
Datasonic Digent Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 60 60 Dormant,
("DSBII) 19
Held by DMSB
Constant Ahead Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia 100 100 Dormant,
("CASB") &
Notes.-

bl

- The subsidiary was granted Multimedia Super Corridor status which qualifies for Pioneer Status
incentive under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986 as disclosed in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

@ - The subsidiaries are audited by member firms of Crowe Global of which Crowe Malaysia PLT is a
member.

~ - These subsidiaries are audited by other firms of chartered accountants.

~ - No audit raquiremaent of this subsidiary under New Zealand Companies Act 1993 as the Company
satisfied the exemption requirements.

¥ - 1% held by a wholly-owned subsidiary, DTSB.

§ - Although the Company owns less than half of the voting power in DBTF, the Company has control
over DBTP hy virtue of an agreement with other investor of DBTP. Consequently, the Company
consolidates its investment of this subsidiary.

& - The subsidiary is in the process of strike-off under Section 550 of the Companies Act, 20716.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No; 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

{a)  The non-controlling interests at the end of the financial year comprise the following:-

Effective Equity Interest Group
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % RM'000 RM'000
DBTP 60 60 248 271
Ds8 40 a0 {3) (2)

The summarised financtal information (before intra-group elimination) for each subsidiary that
has non-controlling interests is not precented as the non-controlling interests are nol material

to the Group.

8. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Group
2023
RM'000
Unguoted share, at cost #
Share of post-acquisition loss (#

2022
RM'000

Noteg -
# - Amount less than RMT,000,
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration Na; 200801008472 (808759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

8. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

The details of the associate are as follows:-

Principal Effective
Place of Equity Interest
Name of Associate Business 2023 2022 Principal Activities
% %
Heidd by DTS8
Datasonic Grid Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia 25 25 Dormant.
("DGESB")

(a)  The share of result in the associate is based on the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

(b  The summarised financial information for the associate is not presented as the associate is not
material to the Group.

{c)  The Group has not recognised the cumulative loss of DGSB, where its share of loss exceeds the
Group's cost of investment. The Group's cumulative share of unrecognised loss at the end of the
financial year was approximately RM4,000 (2022 - RM3,000) of which approximately RM1,000
(2022 - RM1,000) was the share of the current financial year's loss. The Group has no obligation
in respect of this loss.,

9. OTHERINVESTMENT

Group
2023 2022
RM 000 RM'000
Investment in club membership, at fair value 110 110
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated In Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

10.

GOODWILL
Group
2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000
Goodwill 4,162 4,162

The amount of goodwill relates to the manufacturing of cards cash-generating unit, The goodwill arose
from the investment in subsidiaries and is reviewed for impairment annually,

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined that no impairment is
required, The recoverable amount of the manufacturing of cards cash-generating unit is computed using
the value in use appreach, and this is derived from the present value of the fulure cash flows from the
cash-generating unit based on the projections of financial budgets approved by management covering a
period of 5 years. The Key assumptions used in the determination of the recoverable amount are as
follows:-

{iy Budgeted gross margin Average gross margin achieved in the 5 years immediately
before the budgeted period increased for expected efficiency
improvements and cost saving measures.

(i) Growth rate Based on the expected projection of the smart card business.
(i) Discount rate {(pre-tax) Reflects specific risks relating o the relevant cash-generating
unit,

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of fulure projections
in the cash-generating unit and are based on both external sources and internal historical data,
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

11. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

At cost:-
At 31 March 2023/2022

Accumulatad amaortisation:-
At 1 April 2022/2021
Amortisation during the financial year (Note 37)

At 31 March 2023/2022

Accurnulated impairment losses:-
At 31 March 2023/2022

Group
2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000
51,807 51,807
{35,226) {30,244)
{11,507) {4,982)
(48,733) (35,226)
{1,222) (1,222)
3,852 15,359

The development expenditure consist of direct and related costs for overhead and software solutions
incurred in the process of development, and attributable to the Group's customised smart card
solutions ("CSCS") reportable segment. Their amortisation chargaes are recognised in profit or loss as

Cost of Sales line item.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amounts of the development expenditure and determined
that no impairment is required. Their recoverable amounts are determined using the value in use
approach, and this is derived from the present value of the future cash flows from the customised
software and hardware systems business computed based on the projections of financial budgets
covering a period of & years (2022 - § years). The key assumptions used in the determination of the

recoverable amounts are as follows:-

{i} Budgeted gross Gross margin is the forecasted margin as a percentage of
margin ravenue over the five-year (2022 - fiva-year) projection periods
which were determined hased on the expectations of market

development and, adjusted for market and economic conditions,

internal resource efficiency, whare applicable.

(iiy Growth rate Based on the expected projection of the customised software
and hardware systems business.

(i) Discount rate (pre-tax) Reflects specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating
unit.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809738 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

12.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment losses

Accrued income

The {rade receivables are made up of:-

{a) Non-current;
Trade recaivables
Accruad income

() Current:
Trade receivables
Accrued income

Allowance for impairment losses -
At 1 April 2022/2021

Addition (Note 37)

Write back

Written off

At 31 March 2023/2022

The Group's normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 (2022 - 30 to 90) days, Other credit terms
are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

The allowance for impairment losses is made on those trade receivables from those companies which

Group
2023 2022
RM'OG0 RM'000
111,069 33,481
{10,873) (7,562)
100,196 25919
14,409 24 846
114,605 50,765
. 1,436
. 710
- 2,146
100,196 24,483
14,409 24,136
114,605 48,619
114,605 50,765
(7.562) {3,908)
(3.572) (3,6586)
63 -
208 -
(10,873) (7.562)

are in serious financial difficuities and which have defaulted on payments.

Accrued income represents revenue earned for work performed and goods delivered but the related

invoices have yet fo be issued.
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DATASONIC GROUP BEERHAD
(Incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No; 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 5STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

13. PROJECTS-IN-PROGRESS

Group
2023 2022

RM'000 RM'Q00

At costs-
Site preparation - 1,780
Machinery - 212
Technical services 1,688 1,209
Others 9 9
1,597 3,180

14, INVENTORIES
Group
2023 2022

RM 000 RM'000

At costs:-
Raw materials 25313 30,701
Finished goods ey 1,691
Spare parts 6,042 6,484
Consumables 1,700 1,401
Equipment 9,673 12,765
Software 5

Goods in transit

53,047

Less: Allowance for impairment losses (822)
52 225

Allowsance for impairment losses;-

At 1 April 2022/2021 (822) (043)

Addition (37) -

Writeback 214 121

Written off as “

At 31 March 2023/2022 (557) (822)

Recognised in profit or loss

Inventories sold 58,605 20,204

Impairment losses 37 -

Writeback of impairment losses {214) {121)

Inventories written off 136 -
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

15.

16.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000 RM'C00
Other receivables 1,145 1,661 12 8

Allowance for impairment losses {155) {155) - -

G00 1,506 12 8
Deposits 930 928 186 186
Prepayments 10,584 7,008 335 354
12,504 0442 533 548

Prepayments consist of downpayment for purchases of materials and machineries.

AMOUNTS OWING BY/{TQO) SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2023 2022
RM'Q00 RM'000

AmoLnts owing by:-
for non-rade balances 75,963 51,043
Allowance for impalrment losses (8,103) -

69,860 51,043
Aflowance for impairment losses:-
At 1 April 202272021 - -
Addition (Note 37) (6,103) .
At 31 March 2023/2022 {6,103) -
Amounts owing (to):-
for non-trade balances {133) (151)

The amounts owing by/(to) subsidiaries represent unsecured payments made on behalf and are
interest-free and receivable/{repayable) on demand.

The amaunts owing are to be settled in cash and in kind as appropriate.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{incorparated in Malaysia)
Registration No; 200801008472 (8097589 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

17.

18,

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Group
2023 2022
Carrying Market Carrying Market
Amount Value Amount Value
RM'000 RM'000 RWM'G00 RM'000
Money market funds, at fair value 133,092 133,092 110,111 110,111
Company
2023 2022
Carrying Market Carrying Market
Amount Value Amount Value
RM'000 KRM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Maney market funds, at fair value 48,154 48,154 75,391 75,391
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
Deposits with licensed banks §,398 6,107 - -
Cash and bank balances 18,148 4,637 562 1,098
Short-term investments 133,092 110,111 48,154 75,391
157,639 120,855 48,716 76,489
Less: Deposits pledged to
licensed banks {6,389) (6,107) - -
151,240 114,748 48,716 76,489

The deposits with licensed banks of the Group at the end of the financial year bore effective interest
rates ranging from 1.40% to 3.45% (2022 - 1.40% to 3.45%) per annum, The deposits have maturity
periods ranging from 1 to 24 (2022 - 1 to 24) montha for the Group.

The deposits which have been pledged to licensed banks as securities for banking facilities granted

to the Group,
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

19. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022

Number Share Number Share

Group/Company of Shares Capital of Shares Capital
'000 RM'000 ‘000 RM'000

Issued and Fully Paid-Up
Ordinary sharaes
At 1 April 2,962,000 261,284 2,700,000 135,000
Private placement - - 262,000 128,284
At 31 March 2,962,000 261,284 2,962,000 261,284

The holders of ordinary shares {except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company, and are entitied to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company.
The ordinary shares have no par value,

On & April 2021, the Company received the gross proceads amounting to RM126,284,000 from the
Private Placement of 262,000,000 new ordinary shares at an issue price of RM0.482 per share of which
the issued share capital of the Company was increased to RM261,284,000 comprising of 2,962,000,000
ordinary shares. The Private Placement was completed on 7 April 2021 and the new ordinary shares were
listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 8§ Aprit 2021.

The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

20, TREASURY SHARES

During the financial year, the Company purchased 32 809,000 (2022 - 19,446,000} of its issued
ordinary shares from the open market at an average price of approximately RM0.48 (2022 - RMO.43)
per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was RM15,835,678 (2022 - RM8,850,624)
including transaction costs. The ordinary shares purchased are held as treasury sharas in accordance
with Section 127(6) of the Companies Act 2016 and are presentad as a deduction from equity.

Of the total 2,962,000,000 (2022 - 2,.962,000,000) issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares at the end
of the reporting period, 129,450,000 (2022 - 96,641,000) ordinary shares are held as treasury shares
by the Company. The treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM62,267,093 (2022 -
RM46,430,427).
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

21.

22,

23.

24,

MERGER DEFICIT
The merger deficit of RM11,072,000 (2022 - RM11,072,000) resuited from the differance between the

carrying value of the investments in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of the Company's
subsidiaries upon consolidation under the merger accounting principle.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION RESERVE

The foreign exchange translation reserve arose from the transiation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries whose functional currencies are different from the Group's presentation currency.

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RMG00 RM'000 RM'QG00 RM000
Secured:-
Term loans (Note 24} 17.688 21,810 “ -
Term financing (Note 25) 496 1,839 496 1,830
Lease liabilities (Note 26) 550 “ 550 -
18,734 23,740 1,046 1,939
TERM LOANS (SECURED)
Group
2023 2022
RM000 RM'000
Current liabilities {Note 30) 4,140 4,126
Non-current liabilities (Note 23) 17,688 21,810

21,828 25,938
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24. TERM LOANS (SECURED) (CONTD)

Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

Number
of Monthly Date Of Effective Group
Term  Monthly Instalment Commencement Interest Amount Quistanding
Loan instalments Amount Of Repayment Rate 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1 144 o1 1 January 2015 4.20% 2,167 2,699
{2022 - 3.20%)
2 144 83 1 duly 2017 4.05% h,663 6,455
{2022 - 3.05%)
3 84 98 5 Fehruary 2018 4.05% 2,238 3,414
(2022 - 3.05%)
4 120 134 & July 2020 4 08% 11,760 13,368

(2022 - 3.06%)

21,828 25,936

The term loans above are with floating rates ranging from 4.05% 1o 4.20% (2022 - 3.05% to 3.20%)
per annum,

Term ioan 1 is secured by:-

(a)  alegal charge over certain properties of the Group; and
(b) & corporate guarantee of the Company.

Term loan 2 is secured by:-

{a) alegal charge over certain properties of the Group, and
(b)  acorperate guarantee of the Company.

Term loan 3 is secured by:-

(@)  alegal charge over certain properties of the Group; and
(b)  a corporate guarantee of the Company.

Term loan 4 is secured by,

(2) aliegal charge over a property of the Group; and
()  acorporate guarantee of the Company.
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25. TERM FINANCING (SECURED)

Current Habilities {Note 30)
Non-current Habilities (Note 23)

Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

Number
Of Maonthly Date Of
Term Monthly instalment Commencement
Financing tnstalments Amount  Of Repayment
RM000
1 120 126 1 July 2014

Group/Company
2023 2022
RM'000 RM'O00
1,447 1,398
496 1,939
1,943 3,337
Effactive Group/Company
interest Amount Qutstanding
Rate 2023 2022
RM'G00 RM'000
4.20%
(2022 - 3.20%) 1,043 3,337

Term financing 1 is secured by a legal charge over a property of the Group and of the Company and

is with floating rate of 4.20% (2022 - 3.20%) per annum.

26. LEASE LIABILITIES

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 April 2022/2021 - 912 - 236
Interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss (Note 36) 14 55 14 4
Addition 1,430 - 1,430 -
Repayment of principal (172) (912) (172) {238)
Repayment of interest expenses {14} (55} (14) (4)
At 31 March 2023/2022 1,258 - 1,258 -
Ropresented hy:-
Current liabilities (Note 30) 708 - 708 -
Non-current liabilities (Note 23) 5560 - 550 -
1,268 - 1,258 -
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27.

28.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group
2023 2022
RM' 000 RM'000
A1 April 2022/2021 4,334 4,007
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 38) 849 327
At 31 March 2023/2022 5183 4,334

The defarred tax liabilities recognised in the financial statements consist of the tax effects of temporary
differences arising from the following item:-

Group
2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000
Defarred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated capital allowances 5,183 4,334

In the previous financial year, the Group has not recognised the deferred tax liability of the following
item as the directors are of the opinion that the deferred tax liability will not crystallise in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, DSSSB, which was granted Muitimedia Super Corridor status which qualifies for
Pioneer Status incentive under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1886,

Group
2023 2022
RN'000 RM'0O0C
Accelerated capital ailowances - 22 821
TRADE PAYABLES
Group
2023 2022
RM'000 RM’000
Trade payables 19,457 6,583

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range fram 30 to 90 (2022 - 30 1o 90) days.
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company
2023 2023 2022
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
Other payables 2,272 73 172
Deferred income 1,524 - -
Provisions 7,387 1,417 559
Accruals 4,496 146 152
15,679 1,636 883
Accruals consist of cost for goods or services and subcontracting services,
30. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Group Gompany
2023 2023 2022
RM 000 RA'000 RM'000
Secured:-
Term toans (Note 24) 4,140 - -
Term financing (Note 25) 1,447 1,447 1,308
Trade financing 34,307 - .
Lease liabilities (Note 26) 708 708
40,602 2,185 1,398

The trade financing bore effective interest rates ranging from 3.94% to 5.98% (2022 - 3.76% to 3.01%)
per annum and are secured by a corporate guarantee of the Company. Certain trade financing is
secured by a legal charge over a property of the Group and of the Company.

31. NET ASSETS PER SHARE

The net assets per share of the Group is calculated based on the net asset value at the end of the
financial year of RM360,144.,000 (2022 - RM342,246,000) divided by the number of ordinary shares
{net of treasury shares of 120,450,000 (2022 - 96,641,000)) at the end of the financial vear of

2.832,550,000 (2022 - 2,865,359,000).
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32. DIVIDENDS

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021:

Fourth imterim single lier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 27 May 2021 and paid on
30 June 2021

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022:

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023

First interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 30 August 2021 and paid on
29 September 2021

Second interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 30 November 2021 and paid on
21 January 2022

Third interim single tier tax-vxempt dividend
declared on 28 February 2022 and paid an
30 March 2022

Fourth interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 31 May 2022 and paid on
1 July 2022

First interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 30 August 2022 and paid on
28 October 2022

Second interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 30 November 2022 and paid on
29 December 2022

Third interim single tier tax-exempt dividend
declared on 27 February 2023 and paid on
23 March 2023

Son Por
Share

0.25

0.50

0.50

Group/Company
2023 Sen Per
RM'0G0  Share
- 0.05
p 0.10
- 0.125
- 0.125
7,161 -
7138 -
14,163 -
14,163 -
42,625

2022
RM’000

1,442

2,874

3,586
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32.

33.

34,

DIVIDENDS (CONT'D)

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Directors had on 26 May 2023 declared a
fourth interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 0.75 sen per share, the Entitlement Date will be
determined and announced in due course. This dividend hag not been reflected in the financial
statements for the current financtal year but it wilt be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an
appropriation of retained profits for the financial year ending 31 March 2024,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the financial year ended 31

March 2023,
REVENUE
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
Sales of goods and services 344,705 136,428 “ -
Management service fee - - 19,808 15,048
Dividend income from subsidiaries - - 56,000 2,000
344,705 136,428 75,908 17,048
Detaiis of revenue are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements,
OTHER INCOME
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'O00 RN 000 RM'O00
Interest income on financial
assets:
- at fair value through profit or
lgss - 1,803 - 1,499
- at amortised cost 361 1,197 207 1,005
Rental income - - 1,486 1,477
Fair value gain on short-term
invesiments 3,586 511 1,753 37z
Sundries 78 439 2 2
4 028 3,950 3,448 4,355
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35.

36,

STAFF COSTS

Salaries and other benefits
Defined contribution plan

FINANCE CO3TS

Interest expense on financial
liabilities at amortised cost

Interest expense on lease
liabilities (Note 26)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
47,608 38,655 9,230 8,955
8,317 4610 1,027 953
52,925 43,265 10,257 9,908
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RMG00 RM'000
1,645 1,404 o6 127
14 55 14 4
1,659 1,459 114 131

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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37,

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
chargingf{craditing -

Auditors’ remuneration;

- auditor of the Company

- member firms of the auditors of the
Company

- other auditors

Directors' remuneration (Note 41)

Amount owing by a subsidiary:
- Writtan off
- Allowance for impairment [oss

Investmant in a subsidiary:
- Written off

Amortisation of development
expanditure {Note 11)

Bad debts wrillen off

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
{Note 8)

Fair value gain on shor-term
invastments

Inventories (Note 14):

- Allowance for impairment ioss
= Writeback

= Writtan off

Loss/{(Gain) on foreign exchange:
- Realisad
- Unrealised

Other receivables (Note 15).
- Allowance for impairmant loss

Property, plant and equipment (Mote 5):
- Depreciation

- Wrilten off

- Gain on disposal

Trade raceivables (Note 12):

« Allowanee far impairment [oss
- Fair valueg (gain)/loss

- Writeback

Reversal of excess accrued operational
costs

Group

2023
RM'000

234

23
10

5,846

11,607

419

{3,5886)

a7
(214)
136

797
(272)

24,899
(46)
3,572

(170)
(53)

2022
RM'000

207

23
10

4,135

4,982
94

{4,500)

Company
2023
RM'000

52

3,188

6,103

371

{1,753)

2022
RM'000

10

245

(372)

1,063

{47)
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37.

38.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT'D)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging/{crediting) (Cont'd):-

Staff costs (Note 35}

Lease expenses:
= Short-term leases
- tow-value assets

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense:
- for the financial year

= underf{over)provision in the previous

financial years

Deferrad tax liabilities (Note 27):;

- for the financial vear

- undes/(overiprovision in the

previous financtal year

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
52,925 43,265 10,267 9,908
623 820 260 8§22
86 74 24 22
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'G00 RM 060 RM'000 RM'000
30,881 2,051 431 234
108 134 41 (61)
30,980 2,188 472 173
g22 566 u .
227 (239) . .
849 327 - -
31,838 2,512 472 173

On 6 November 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary, DSSSB was granted Multimedia Super Corridor
status which qualifies for Pioneer Status incentive under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986 for
the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2017 whereby the statutory income from approved activities
is exampted from tax. The application for an extension of another five years was approved on 4 April
2018 for the years from 18 May 2017 to 17 May 2022,
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38.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D}

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable o the profit hefore taxation at the statutory tax
rate to the income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:-

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022

RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit before taxation 108,183 12,737 49,451 1,952
Tax at the statutory tax
rate of 24% 25,964 3,067 11,868 468
Tax effects of-
Non-deductible expenses 1,894 2,026 2,292 547
Non-taxable income (984) (1,041) {13,861) {840)
Effect of reinvestment
allowance (B16) - - -
Income tax exempted from
tax due to pioneer status (707) (742) - -

Deferred tax liabilities

recognised due to expiration

of pioneer status 5,037 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities not

recognised due to pioneer

status - {(2,395) " -
Deferred tax asset not

recognised during the financial

yoar 720 1.409 132 50
Utilisation of deferred tax assets

previously not recognised - (86) . -
Effects of differential in tax rates

of subsidiary 165 389 - .

Under/{over)provision in the

previous financial year:

- current taxation 108 134 41 {(61)
- deferred taxation 227 (239) - -

income tax expense for the
financial year 31,838 2512 472 173

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2022 - 24%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the financial year, The taxation of other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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39. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group
2023 2022
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RM'000) 76,367 10,244
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2 850,789 2,867,888
Basic earnings per share (sen) 2.68 0.36
Diluted earnings per share (sen) 268 0.36

The effects of potential ordinary shares arising from the conversion of Warrants are anti-dilutive and
accordingly, they have been ignored in the calculation of dilutive earnings per share. As a result, the
diluted earnings per ordinary share was the same ag basic earnings per share,

40. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

{a) The cash disbursed for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and the addition of right-of-
uge assots is as follows -

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM000 RM'000 RMQ00 RMO00

Property, plant and equipment
Cost of property, ptant and equipment

purchased (Note 5) 3,868 7.321 137 218
Right-of-use assets
Cost of right-of-use assels acquired

{Note 6) 1,430 - 1,430 .
Less: Addition of new lease liabilities {1,430) - (1,430) -
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40. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(b) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing activities are as folows:-

Term Term Lease Trade
Loans Financing Liabilities Financing Total
Group RMQ00 RM'O00 =Mo00 RM'0C0O RMQ00
2023
At 1 April 2022 26,936 3,337 - 3,425 32,608
Changes in Financing Cash
Proceeds from drawdown - - - 39,116 39,116
Repaymant of borrowing
principal (4,108) {1,394) {172) (8,234) {13,808)
(4,108)  (1,394) (172) 30,882 25,208
Other Changes
Acquisition of new lease - “ 1,430 - 1,430
. . 1,430 - 1,430
At 31 March 2023 21,828 1,943 1,258 34,307 59,336
2022
At 1 April 2021 47 033 4,603 a12 7,259 59,807
Changes in Financing Cash
flows
roceeds from drawdown - - - 16,125 18,125
Repayment of borrowing
principal (21,097)  (1,356) (912)  (18,950)  (42,324)
(21,097)  {1,356) (912)  (3,834)  (27,199)
At 31 March 2022 25,936 3,337 - 3,425 32,608
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40. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(b) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from finaneing activities are as follows (Cont'd):-

Company
2023
At 1 April 2022

Changes in Financing Cash Flows

Repayment of borrowing principal

Other Changes
Acquisition of new lease

At 31 March 2023

2022
At 1 April 2021

Changes in Financing Cash Flows

Repayment of barrowing principal

At 31 March 2022

Term lease
Financing Liabilities Total
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000
3,337 - 3,337
(1,394) {172) (1,5686)
(1,394) (172) (1,566)
- 1,430 1,430
- 1,430 1,430
1,843 1,258 3,201
4,693 236 4,929
(1,356) (236) (1,592)
{1,358) (236) (1,592)
3,337 - 3,337
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40. CAS5H FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D)

41.

(&) The total cash outflows for leases as a lessee are as follows:-

Fayment of short-term leases
Payment of low-value assets
interest paid on lease liabilities

Payment of lease liabilities

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors' remuneration during the financial year are as follows:-

Directors of the Company

Executive:

- salaries and bonus
- defined contribution benefits

Non-executive:
- fees
- allowances

Directors of the Subsidiaries

Executive:

- salaries and bonus
- defined contribution benefits

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'Q00 RMO00 RM000 RM’000
623 820 560 822
86 74 24 22
14 55 14 4
172 912 172 236
aa5 1,861 770 1,084
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'Q00 R 000 RM'000 RM'O00
1,915 1,228 1,915 1,228
202 163 202 163
2,117 1,391 217 1,391
a81 868 945 868
126 77 126 77
1,107 945 1,071 945
3,224 2,336 3,188 2,336
2,484 1,661 - -
138 138 - -
2,622 1,789 “
5,846 4,135 3,188 2,336
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41. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION {CONT’D)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'Q00 RM'000 RM*GOO RM'000
Analysis excluding
benafits-in-Kind:-
Total executive directors’
salaries and honus 4,739 3,190 2117 1,391
Total non-executive directors:
- fees 981 268 245 868
- gllowances 126 77 126 77
1,107 945 1,071 945
Total directors' remuneration
excluding benefits-in-kind 5,846 4,135 3,188 2,336

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The following items are disclosed as contingant liabilities as it is not probable that a future sacrifice of
economic benefits will be required or the amounts are not capable of reliable measurement:-

{(8) Performance guarantees

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RM'CG00 RM'000
Perfarrmance guarantees extended
tey customers 17,052 19,833 17.052 18,833
Performance guarantees extended
to & supplier - 20 - -
17,052 19,853 17,052 19,833
{b) Corporate guarantees
Corporate guarantees for banking
facilities granted to the subsidiaries - - 56,133 29,311
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42.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

The following items are disclosed as contingent liabilities as it is not probable that a future sacrifice of
economic benefits will be required or the amounts are not capable of reliable maasurement (Cont'd):-

{c)

Material litigation

On 1 August 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary, DTSB, has received a writ of summons together
with the statement of claim dated 30 July 2018 ("Suit") filed by Percetakan Keselamatan
Nasional Sdn Bhd ("PKN"} against DT3B, The Suit is in relation to a disagreement between
DTSB and PKN over the price of 1,500,000 Malaysian Passport booklets supplied by PKN to
DTSB as DTSRB's sub-contractar for the interirn period of 8 months from 1 December 2016 to 31
May 2017, before the Malaysian Passport booklets were fully printed and supplied by DTSB to
the Govarnment of Malaysia.

On 13 October 2021, the High Court had delivered its judgement for the Defendant ie. DTSB
to pay a total sum of RM15,000,000 to the PKN.

The High Court also dismissed PKN's claim for GST and prejudgement interest calculated from
the date of the PKN's invoices. instead, the High Courl had only awarded a post judgment
interest rate of 4% per annum.

Cost of RM30,000 was awarded and to be paid to DTSE.

On 2 November 2021, DTSR had been served with a Notice of Appeai filled by PKN at the Court
of Appeal on 29 Octobher 2021.

On 15 June 2022, the appeal filed by PKN against DTSB was heard by the Court of Appeal.
After having heard the arguments by Counsels of both parties, the Court of Appeal has fixad the
date for decision on 18 August 2022,

On 18 August 2022, the Court of Appeal has been vacated by the Court and a new Case
Management to set new decision date is fixed on 30 August 2022,

On 1 September 2022, the Court of Appeal has fixed the date for decision on 26 Qctober 2022,

On 26 Qctober 2022, Court of Appeal had allowed part of FKN's appeal, that is only with regards
to the judgment interest and cost awarded by the Migh Court.

The Court of Appeal agreed with the findings of the High Court. The sum to be paid for the
passport booklet is RM10.00 per passport booklet and PKN is not entitled to the Goods and
Services Tax.

The Court of Appeal found that the learned trial judge has erred in deciding that the post
judgment interest rate of 4% per annum and awarding the cost of RM30,000 to DTSB, The Court
of Appeal ordered that PKN is entitled to the interest of 5% per annum, Therefore, the Court of
Appeal orderad DTSB to refund the cost of RM30,000 to PKN and further awarded the cost of
RM5,000 to PKN for the appeal.

No Notice of Appeal has been filed by PKN and the time limit for PKN to file their appeal has
lapsed on 26 November 2022
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43,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The fransactions of the Company with its related parties are as follows:-

Company
2023 2022

RM'000 RM'000
Subsidiaries
Management services faes 19,908 16,048
Consuttancy fea 510 464
Dividend income 56,000 2,000
Equipment transferred from - 12
Equipment transferred to 2 5
Rental income 1,486 1,477
Flental expense . 5
Waiver of debts - 135

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision makers in order to allocate resources 10 segments and to assess their
performance. For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on the
products and services provided.

The Group is organised into three main reportable segments as follows:-

Customised smart card solutions (“CSCS") - provision of large scale customised software and
hardware systems for secure ID, total smart card solutions and {CT project management.

Manufacturing (“MA") - manufacturing of cards and boaoklets.

Investment holding ("1H") - investment holding and provision of management services to the group of
companios,

{a)  The chief operating decision makers assess the performance of the reportable segments based
on their profit before interest expense and taxation. The accounting policies of the reportable
sagments are the same as the Group's accounting policies.

(b} FEach reportable segment assets is measured based on all assets (including goodwill) of the
segment other than the tax-related assets.

{¢)  Each reportable segment liabilities is measured based on ali liabilities of the segrnent other than
the borrowings and the tax-related liabilities.

Transactions between reportable segments are carried out on agreed terms and such inter-segment
transactions are eliminated on consolidation,
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44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
CSCS MA IH Group
RM'0G0 RM'000 RM'000 RMG00
2023
Revenue
Extemal revenue 293,068 50,737 . 344 705
Inter-segmant revenue 6,721 9,627 75,008 02 2056
300,689 60,364 75,908 436,961
Consolidation adjustments (92,256)
Consolidated revenue 344,705
Representad by:-
Revenus recognised at a point of time
- Sales of goods ang sofiware solutions 276,921 60,364 75,808 413,193
Revenue recognised over time
- Salos of services 23,768 - - 23,768
300,688 60,364 75,8908 436,961
Consolidation adjustments {92,256)
Consolidated revenue 344,705
Results
Segment profit before intarest expense and
taxation 113,866 19,853 49,563 183,282
Finance costs {1,659)
Consolidation adjustments (73,440)
Consolidated profit hefore taxation 108,183
Segment profit before interest expense and
taxation includes the following:-
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - - 46 45
Interast incorme 154 - 207 381
Writehack of impaimaent losses on:
- trade receivablas 53 - - 53
- inventories 214 - - 214
Allowsance for impairment losses on:
- frade receivable (3,5672) - . (3,572)
- inventories (37} - . {37}
Fair value gain on:
= trade recaivables 170 " - 170
- short tarm investments 1,833 - 1,783 3,586
Inventories written off 136 - - 136
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809753 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

44. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
BUSINESS SEGMENTS {(CONT'D)

C5CS MA IH Group
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM’000
Sagment profit before interast expense
and taxation includes the following
(Contd):-
Ameortisation of development
expenditure {11,507) “ “ (11,507)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment {21,797) (2,018) {1,084) (24,899)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (48) - (371) {419)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss) 331 {55} (4) 272
Property, ptant and equipment written off {1) . (1) (2)
CsCs MA IH Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
2023
Asseots
Segment ascets 377,357 89,164 225 399 691,020
Unallocated assets;
- deposits with licensed banks 6,399
- cash and bank balances 18,148
Consolidation adjustments (251,105)
Consolidated total assets 465,362
Addition to non-current assets other
than financial instruments is;-
Property, plant and equipment 2,244 1,487 137 3,868
Right-of-use asset - - 1,430 1,430
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 220,467 40,985 3,712 265,164
Unallocated liabilities;
- deferrad tax liabilities 5,183
- leasad liabifity 1,258
- provision for taxation 5,317
Consolidation adjustments (171,950)
Consolidated total fiabllities 104,972
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (8009759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

44, OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT’'D)

C5CS MA IH Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 BW 000
2022
Revenue
External revenue 124,006 12,332 - 136,428
Inter-segment revenue 8,978 1,337 17,048 27,363
133,074 13,669 17,048 163,791
Consolidation adjustments (27,363)
Consolidated revenue 136,428
Represented by:-
Revenue recognised at a point of time
- Sales of goods and sofiware solutions 111,985 13,660 17,048 142,702
Revenue recognised over time
- Sales of services 21,089 - - 21,089
133,074 13,669 17,048 163,791
Consolidation adjustments (27,363)
Consolidated revenue 136,428
Results
Segment profit before Interest expense and
taxation 32,981 456 2083 35,520
Finance costs (1,459
Consolidation adjusiments {21,324)
Consolidated profit before taxation 12,737
Segment profit before interest expense and
taxation includes the foliowing:-
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment - - 47 47
Interest income 487 8 2,505 3,000
Writeback of impairment losses on:
- inventories 121 - - 121
Allowance for impairment losses on:
- trade receivable (3,656) - - (3,658)
- other receivable {155} - - (155)
Bad debts wrilten off (94) - - {24)
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809752 - X)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

44, OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

Segment profit befora interest expense

and taxation includes the following
{Cont'd):-

Amaortisation of development
expenditure

Depreclation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value loss on frade receivable
Urrealised foreign exchange loss

Propetty, plant and equipment written off

2022
Assets

Segment assets

Unallocated assets:

- deposits with licensed banks
- cash and bank balances

- tax recoverable
Consolidation adjustments

Consolidated total assets

Addition to non-current assels other

than financial instruments is:-

Properly, plant and equipment

Liabilities

Segment labilities
Unaliocated liahilities:

- deferred tax liabilities
Consolidation adjustments

Consolidated total liabilities

C5CSs MA IH Group

RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RMG0
(4,982) - - (4,982)
(8,870) (2,063) (1,063) {11,996)
(268) . (245) (514)
(59) . - (59)

(17) (?) 1 (18)

{4) (2) (13) (19)

C5CSs MA IH Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
241,892 80,554 233,880 566,326
5,107

4,637

2,392
(168,684)

400,778

2,458 4 644 218 7,320

108,606 23,953 4,552 137,111
4,334
(83,182)

58,263
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809756 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

44,

45,

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Na information is presentad on the basis of geographical segment as the Group operates primarily in

Malaysia during the financtal year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The following are major customers with revenue equal to or mare than 10% of the Group's total

revenue -

Revenue Segment
2023 2022
RM'000 RM'G00
Customer #1 226,025 66,122 CECE, MA
Customer #2 52,427 25,633 CECS
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM Q00 RM'000 RM'000
Renovation 351 5 327 -
Acquisition of machineries and
aquipment 1,596 681 70 -
1.947 686 397 -
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DATASONIC GROUP BEERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

46,

47,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

The applicable closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of ong unit of foreign
currency 1o RM equivalent) for the translation of foreign currency balances at the end of the financial
year were as follows:-

2023 2022

RM RM
United States Dollar ("USD") 4,41 4,20
New Zealand Dollar ("NZD") 2.76 2.91
Eurc ("EUR") 4.81 4,68
Singapore Dollar ("SGD") 332 3.1
Indonesian Rupiah 100 ("IDR") 3.03 2.86
Great Britain Pound ("GBP") 5.46 5,52
Bahraini Dinar ("BHD™) N/A 11.18
Philippine Peso ("PHP") 0.08 0.08
Note -

N/A - Not applicable,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's activities are exposed (o a variety of market risks (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and eguity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall financial risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

471

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group’s polictes in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(a)

Market Risk

(i)

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are
denominated in currencies other than the respective functional currencies of entities
within the Group. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
Dollar, Euro, Singapore Dollar and Great Britain Pound. Forgign currency risk is
monitored closely on an ongeing basis to ensure that the nef exposure is at an
acceptable level. The Group also holds cash and cash equivalents denominated in
fareign currencies for working capital purposes.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
471 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
(a) Market Risk {Cont'd)
{i) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont'd)

The Company does not have any transactions or balances denominated in foreign
currencies and hence, is not exposed to foreign currency risk,

Foreign Currancy Risk Sensitivity Analysis

The following tahble details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change
in the foreign currencies at the end of the financial year, with all other variabies
held constant:-

Group
2023 2022
RM000 RM'000

Effects on Profit After Taxation

USD/RM:

- gtrengthenad by 5% (259) (139)
- weakened by 5% 259 139
EUR/RM:

- strengthened by 5% (118) {14)
- weakened by 5% 118 14
SGD/RM:

- strengthened by 5% {#) (3)
- weakened by 5% # 3
GBF/RM:

- strengthened by 5% (153) (#)
- weakened by 5% 153 it
Nofes:-

# - Amount less than RM1,000,
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incarporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809750 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT PQLICIES (CONT'D)
Market Risk (Cont'd)

47.1

(a)

(ii)

Interest Rate Risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiai
instrumant will fluctuate because of changes in market interast rates, The Group's
exposure ta interest rate risk arises mainly from long-term borrowings with variable
rates, The Group's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates availabile
and by maintaining a balanced portfolio of fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The Group's fixed rate deposits and borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
Therefore, they are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in MFRS 7 since
neither the carrying amounts nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a
change in market interest rates.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk based on the carrying amounts of the
financial instruments at the end of the financial year is disclosed in Notes 24, 25
and 30 to the financial statements,

interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change
in the Interest rates at the end of the financial year, with all other variables held
constant:-

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
RM'000 RM'000 RAM'000 RM'000

Effects on Profit
After Taxation

Increase of 100
basis points (bp) (441) (248) (18) (25)
Dacrease of 100 bp 441 248 15 25
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
Market Risk (Cont'd)

471

(@)

(b)

(i)

Equity Price Risk

The Group's principal exposure to equity price risk arises mainly from changes in
quoted investment prices. The Group manages its exposure to equity price risk by
maintaining a pertfolio of equities with different risk profiles.

Equity Price Risk Sensitivity Analysis

If prices for quoted Investments at the end of the reporting period strengthen by
1% with all other variables being held constant, the Group's and the Company's
profit after taxation and equity would have increased by approximately
RM1,011,000 and RM366,000 (2022 - RM836,000 and RM&73,000) respectively.
A 1% weakening in the quoted prices would have had an equal but opposite effect
on the profit after taxation and equity of the Group and Company.

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, anses mainly
from trade and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the
application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis.
For other financial assets (including cash and bank halances), the Group minimises creadit
tisk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties,

The Company's exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of these subsidiaries regularly and
repayments made by the subsidiaries.

(i

Credit Risk Concentration Frofile

The Group’s majar concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by
three (3) customers (2022 - two (2) customers) which constituted approximately
06% (2022 - 80%) of its trade receivables (excluding accrued Income) at the end
of the financial year.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incarporated in Mataysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809750 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
Credit Risk {Cont’d)

47.1

(b}

(ii)

(iii)

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

At the end of the financial year, the maximum expasure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Group and of the Company after deducting
any allowance for impairment losses (where applicable).

Assessment of Impairment Losses

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of financial assets at
amortised cost are credit impaired.

The gross carrying amounts of those financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery (i.e. the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income to generate sufficiant cash flows to repay the debt) despite they
are still subject to enforcament activities,

Trade Receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characleristics and the days past due,

The Group considers any receivables having financial difficulty or with significant
balances outstanding past due and more than 365 days are deemed credit
impaired,

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period
of 12 months from the measurement date and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle their debts.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incorporated in Mataysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

471 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)

Assessment of Impairment Losses (Cont'd)

Trade Receivablas (Cont'd)

Tha information about the exposure {o credit risk and the loss allowances
calculated under MFRS @ for trade receivables (excluding accrued income) is

summarised below:-

Group
2023
Current (not past due)

Past due;

- 31 to 60 days
- 61 to 20 days
- over 90 days

Credit impaired:
- individually impaired

Lifetime
Gross Loss Collective Carrying
Amount  Allowance  Impairment Value
RM’000 RM'000 RMQ00 RM'G0O0
35,179 - (68) 35,111
25,080 - {7 25,009
17,680 - (69) 17,520
23,255 - {699) 22 556
65,924 - {839) 65,085
101,103 “ (907) 100,156
9,966 (9,966) . -
111,069 (9,066) (907) 100,196
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
{Incarporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
471 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)
{b) Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(iiy  Assessment of Impairment l.osses (Cont'd)

Trade Receivables (Cont'd)

Lifetime
Gross l.oss Carrying
Amount Allowance Value
Group RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
2022
Current (not past due) 17,187 . 17,187
Past due:
- 31 10 60 days 3,354 - 3,354
- 61 to 80 days 101 - 101
- over 90 days 8,277 . 5,277
8732 - g,732

25918 - 25919
Cradit impaired:
- individually impaired 7,562 (7,562) -

33,481 (7,562) 25,419

The movements in the loss allowances in respect of trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Other Receivables

Other receivables are also subject to the impairment requirements of MFRS @, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial and hence, it is not provided for,

Deposits with Licensed Banks, Cash and Bank Balances

The Group considers these banks and financial institutions have low credit risks.
Therefore, the Group is of the view that the loss allowance is immaterial and hence,
it is not provided for.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
Ragistration No: 200801008472 (808758 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT'D)

47.1

(b)

(c)

Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(il Assessmant of Impairment Losses (Cont'd)
Amount Owing By Subsidiaries

The Company applies the general approach to measuring expecled credit losses
for all intercompany balances. Generally, the Company considers loans and
advances to subsidiaries have low credi risks. The Company assumes that there
i a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary's financial position
deteriorates significantly. As the Company is able to determine the timing of
payments of the subsidiaries’ [oans and advances when they are payable, the
Company considers the loans and advances to be in default when the subsidiaries
are not able to pay when demanded. The Company considers & subsidiary's loan
or advance to be credit impaired when the subsidiary is unlikely to repay its loan
or advance in full or the subsidiary is continuously [oss making or the subsidiary is
having a deficit in its total equity.

The Company determines the probability of default for these loans and advances
individually using internal information available.

The exposure to credit risk and the loss allowances calculated under MFRS 9 for
amount owing by subsidiaries is immaterial and hence, itis not provided for,

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group

practises prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the
availability of funding through certain committed credit facilities.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
47.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an
optimal capital struclure so as to support its businesses and maximise shareholders value. To
achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes
in economic conditions, such as adjusting the armount of dividend payment, returning of capital to
shareholders or issuing new shares.

The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants
and regulatory requirements, if any. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity. The Group includes within total borrowings, loans and borrowings from
financial institutions. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent and non-
controlling interest, The debi-to-equity ratio of the Group at the end of the financial year is as

follows.:-
Group
2023 2022

RM'000 RM'000
Trads financing (Note 30) 34,307 3,425
Tarm financing (Note 25) 1,843 3,337
Term loans (Note 24) 21,828 25,936
Lease liabilities (Note 28) 1,258 -
Total borrowings 59,336 32,608
Total equity 360,390 342,615
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.16 0.09

There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
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Registration No; 200801008472 (808780 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

a7,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONT'D}
47.3 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Assets

Mandatorily at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Other investment (Note 9)
Short-term investments (Note 17)

Amortised Cost
Trade receivables () (Note 12)

QOther receivables and deposits ) (Note 15)

Amounts owing by subsidiaries {Note 16)
Deposits with licensed banks (Note 18)
Cagh and bank balances (Note 18)

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables (Note 28)

Other payables and accruals * (Note 29)
Amounts owing to subsidiaries (Note 16)
Trade financing (Note 30)

Term financing (Note 25)

Term loans (Note 24)

Group Company
RM'000 RM000
110 w
133,092 48,154
133,202 48 154
100,196 -
1,920 198
- 69,860
G,399 “
18,148 562
126,663 70,620
19,457 -
12,948 1,636
- 133
34 307 a
1,043 1,843
21,828 -
90,481 3,712
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47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D}

47.3 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial Assets

Mandatorily at Fair Value Throuah Profit or Loss
Other investment (Note 9)
Short-term tnvestments (Note 17)

Amortised Cost

Trade receivables () (Note 12)

Other raceivables and deposits (9 (Note 15)
Amounts owing by subsidiaries (Note 16)
Deposits with licensed banks (Note 18)
Cash and bank balances (Note 18)

Financial Liabilities

Amgortised Cost

Trade payables (Note 28)

Other payables and accruals & (Note 29)
Amounts owing to subsidiaries (Note 16)
Trade financing {(Note 30)

Term financing (Note 25)

Term loans (Note 24)

Notas;-
(1 . The trade recelvables exclude accrued income.

2022
Group Company
RM'000 RM'000
M0 -
110,111 75,391
110,221 75,391
25,919 -
2,434 194
- 51,043
6,107 .
4,637 1,088
39,097 52,335
6,583 -
11,374 883
- 151
3,425 -
3,337 3,337
25,936 .
50,655 4 371

@ - The other recelvables and depusits exclude advances to suppliers.
(3 . The other payables and accruals exclude deferred income, value-added tax payable and salos

and services tax payable.
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DATASONIC GROUP BERHAD

(Incarporated in Malaysia)

Registration No: 200801008472 (808759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

474 FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(@)

(b)

Eair Value of Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

(i)

(i)

The fair values above have been determined using the following basis:-
(za) The fair value of the club membership is estimated based on its market price.

{bb) The fair values of short-term investments are measured at their quoted closing
bid prices at the end of the financial year.

There were no fransfer between level 1 and level 2 during the financial year.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments not Carried at Fair Value

The fair values, which are for disclosure purposes, have been determined using the
following basis:-

(i)

(ii)

in the grevious financial year, the fair values of trade receivables (non-current) are
datermined using discounted cash flows hased on risk-free rates ranging from 3.00%
to 3.88%,

The fair values of term financing and term loans are determined by discounting the
relevant cash flows using current market interest rates for similar instruments at the
end of the financial year. The interest rates used to discount the estimated cash flows
are as follows:-

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Y Yo % %
Term financing 4.20 3.20 4.20 3.20
Term loans 4.05 to 4.20 3.05 to 3.20 - -
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Registration No: 200801008472 (809759 - X)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The following figures have been reclassified to conform with the presentation of the current financial

year,
Group
As
Previgusly As
Reported Restated
RMO00 RM000
Consalidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Incomae (Extract):-
Cost of sales {62,906) (59,674)
Administrative expenses (63,276) {66,508)
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